


Village of Riverwoods

Plan Commission Meeting

February 1, 2007

1

In Attendance:

Ron Pankau

Joan Becker

Laurie Breitkopf

Cheryl Chamberlain

Kristine Ford

Larry Kanar

William Kaplan

Bruce Huvard

Sherry Graditor

David Niedelman

Absent:

David Ritter

Minutes taken by Debbie Limer

The meeting was called to order at 7:30 PM.

IV. Approval of Minutes

Plan Commission Meeting – October 5, 2006

Commissioner Chamberlain moved to approve the minutes as amended. Commissioner

Breitkopf seconded the motion. Motion was carried by voice vote.

Plan Commission Meeting – November 2, 2006

Commissioner Chamberlain moved to approve the minutes as amended. Commissioner

Breitkopf seconded the motion. Motion was carried by voice vote.

V. Visitors Wishing to Address the Plan Commission

None

VI. Current Matters

Chair Pankau commented that he wanted to compliment Commissioner Chamberlain on

the nice job she did with the Caucus Committee.

Upcoming Issues

Chair Pankau told the Commissioners that he thought it would be a good idea to touch

base on upcoming issues in the Village. Mayor Kaplan suggested starting with the fact

that BP Amoco has pulled out of its project on Deerfield Road and Milwaukee Avenue.

Shell has expressed an interest in taking BP Amoco’s place. Atty. Huvard explained that

the owner of the site had a lease with BP. The lease ran out, and he went to Shell. If



Village of Riverwoods

Plan Commission Meeting

February 1, 2007

2

nothing in the site plan changes, the change in lessee will not impact what has already

been done. If Shell does want to change something, we will have to decide if it is a major

or minor change. Shell will have to come to us, so we can decide if we want to grant an

amendment. We can then amend the special use and direct Shell to prepare different

drawings within the site plan. Mayor Kaplan stated that the architect from Shell came in

to the Village and asked some questions. BP realized that it has have lost money and did

not want to develop any new stations. We will have new drawings for a new station.

Mayor Kaplan added that he felt Shell will be more willing to work with us. Atty.

Huvard told the Commissioners that BP had a lease for the site. Shell should go with the

same egress and ingress. This will be an easier process for Shell because BP did all the

prep work.

Chair Pankau stated that Amcore Bank has pulled out of the other lot on the site. Atty.

Huvard commented that the owner will work with us to find another tenant for the site.

The owners of the 37 acres got back their budget. They have reported that the

construction budget is too high. There is a significant gap between the costs, and what

they want to make on the project. They are looking into what they can do to improve the

situation. They may need to do a less ambitious project. Commissioner Ford asked what

is meant by “less.” Atty. Huvard explained that they may just develop the area along

Milwaukee Avenue. Those lots have a proven market and disturb less of the site.

Interested tenants could be restaurants, banks, or a pharmacy. The owners need to strike

a balance between risk and return. They paid about $5M for the site. Each one-acre site

would go for a lot of money. Chair Pankau stated that he sees a need to redo the

intersection of Deerfield Road and Milwaukee Avenue. There are a lot of accidents there.

Atty. Huvard commented that the southwest and northwest corners of the intersection

are not developed. IDOT is requiring intersection improvements for the entire intersection

when the 37- acre development goes in. that is $3M to $4M worth of off-site

improvements for a total of $4.5M to $5M worth of road improvements. It is not fair to

the owners of the 37-acres because they are being required to pay 100% of the

intersection improvement costs when they only occupy 25% of the space. Chair Pankau

indicated that he is concerned about the traffic coming out of Colonial Courts onto

Deerfield Road. David Niedelman asked about a recapture on the intersection

improvements. Atty. Huvard reported that is very hard to do because of all of the villages

involved.

Commissioner Becker asked about the interior of the 37 acre site. Atty. Huvard explained

that the owners are convinced that they are going to have to do what the IEPA says needs

to be done; which is removing the tree cover and adding vegetative cover. Commissioner

Becker stated that could be prairie-like. Commissioner Breitkopf asked about the trees.

Atty. Huvard stated that there is no tree survey yet. Mayor Kaplan commented that the

trees will need to come down. Atty. Huvard commented that the owners want to change



Village of Riverwoods

Plan Commission Meeting

February 1, 2007

3

the classification of the site. They do not want it regulated as a landfill. Commissioner

Becker questioned if we should hire our own consultants. Atty. Huvard stated that we

can when we want to. Commissioner Becker added that the cost of trees is a large factor

to the owners. She called the EPA. She understands that there can be trees on the site. It

is more work and more costly. She would want to know from someone on our side if we

can have trees put in. Commissioner Ford wanted to know what other communities have

done. The land is valuable to someone at some time. Atty. Huvard told the

Commissioners that Chuck Stewart wants the owners to plant trees in certain areas. We

have a responsibility for the long term. We want to make sure that we keep things in the

landfill from moving into the watershed. Commissioner Becker stated that she was told if

damage could happen, it would have happened by now. Atty. Huvard admitted that he

does not understand all of the environmental answers. Mayor Kaplan added that we do

not know what is in the landfill. Atty. Huvard stated that effluent testing indicates the

types of materials that were buried in the landfill. Commissioner Ford stated that we have

to protect our water supply. Atty. Huvard added that the landfill was shut down in 1976

or 1977. Chair Pankau told the Commissioners this is the last major development in the

Village and we should take the time necessary to have it developed well.

Herrmann Property

Chair Pankau brought up the subject of the Herrmann property. Mayor Kaplan

commented that the Village put in an offer to buy the property. Trustee Graditor stated

that the property is 7.5 acres, only 1.5 acres is buildable. The rest is a conservancy

easement. Mayor Kaplan commented that he would like to purchase it as a park. The

amount that the Hermann estate’s attorney came back with was too expensive to

consider. He questioned who else would want the property. Trustee Graditor explained

that the 1.5 acre building pad is right on Deerfield Road, and the property taxes would

still be based on 7.5 total acres.

Plan Commission issues

Commissioner Becker asked if there is any way for the Plan Commission to be informed

of proposed developments sooner. Trustee Graditor commented that all documentation is

supposed to be in to the Village 14 days ahead of any meetings. Mayor Kaplan added

that many people come into the Village Hall, and their project does not go anywhere.

Commissioner Kanar indicated that we can insist on our date guidelines. Atty. Huvard

admitted that sometimes we do take things with less than 14 days in advance because of

certain circumstances. Commissioner Kanar commented that other villages are more rigid

on their deadlines. Commissioner Breitkopf stated that the BP Amoco wall was sprung

on us at the meeting with no prior materials or explanation. We never saw it before. Atty.

Huvard explained the background events for the BP project. The wall appeared because of

things the Village asked BP to do. We asked for renderings and drawing, but did not get

them as we asked. The wall was changed because of the limitations of the 37 acres.



Village of Riverwoods

Plan Commission Meeting

February 1, 2007

4

Commissioner Chamberlain asked if Shell is still going to have the wall. Atty. Huvard

stated that they would unless they wait until the 37 acres is developed to put in the

station. Commissioner Chamberlain asked what it will look like. Mayor Kaplan reported

that there has to be some give and take. Commissioner Becker stated that she is not just

talking about the wall, but having background information to developments in the Village.

Commissioner Ford reported that she wants harder deadlines and a memo from the staff

with recommendations and background information. Chair Pankau suggested a summary

memo from staff meetings ahead of Plan Commission meetings.

VII. Comments from the Chairperson

Chair Pankau told the Commissioners that he is commuting between two homes. Now is a

good time for him to step down from his position as Chair. Mayor Kaplan thanked Ron

Pankau for his fourteen years on the Plan Commission. He has been exemplary. Mayor

Kaplan stated that the Chair of the Plan Commission should be on the Village staff. He

stated that he is nominating David Niedelman to become the new Chair of the Plan

Commission. He is currently on the Village staff. He can brief the Commissioners on

developments because he will know about them. David Niedelman will be resigning from

the Zoning Board of Appeals. Mike Ford is being appointed to replace him. Mayor

Kaplan commented that David Niedelman has a lot of experience. He was a Trustee and

has now been attending staff meetings for about two years. Chair Pankau stated that this

will help the Plan Commission a great deal.

David Niedelman told the Commissioners that he started on the Thorngate Committee.

He was a Trustee for eight years. He was the Chair of the Zoning Board of Appeals. He

is now on the Village staff and has been asked to come back to a committee. Chair Pankau

commented that it is a good fit. The Commissioners are good, hard working people. We

live in a unique community. It is hard to maintain our standards. We have had to stand our

ground on zoning changes and developments. There is a lot of pressure to change. We are

fighting the fight and have done a good job. Commissioner Chamberlain commented that

she is sorry to see Chair Pankau go.

VIII. Old Business

None

IX. New Business

None

X. Adjournment

Commissioner Chamberlain moved to adjourn the meeting. Commissioner Kanar seconded

the motion. Motion was carried by voice vote.



Village of Riverwoods

Plan Commission Meeting

February 1, 2007

5

The meeting adjourned at 8:30PM.

Respectfully Submitted,

Debbie Limer


